BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

MAYRA LETICIA GUERRERO
4345 E, 5" Street
Los Angeles, CA 90022

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH 68342

Respondent.

Case No. 3376

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement of License and Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This decision shall become effective on December 10, 2010.

Itis so ORDERED on November 10, 2010,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By
STANLEY C. WEISSER
Board President
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EDMUND G BROWN JR.

Attorney General of California

GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Atlorney General

NANCY AL KABLR

Deputy Atterney General

State Bar No. 102083
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeices, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) §97-3794
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804

Attorneys jor Complainani

‘ BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 3376

MAYRA LETICIA GUERRERO STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
4345 L. 5th Street DISCIPLINARY ORDER

Los Angeles, CA 90022 . ‘ '
Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH 68342

Respondent.

In the interest of a prompf and speedy settlement of this matter. consisient with the public
interest and the responsibility of the Board ol Pharmacy. the parties hereby agree 1o the following
Stipulated Scttlement and Disciplinary Order which will be submitied to the Board for approval
and adoption as the final digposition of the Accusation.

PARTIES

L. Virginie K. Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.

She brought this action solely in her afficial czrpacityA and is represented in this matior by Ldmund

G. Brown Jr., Attorney General of the State of California, by Nancy A. Kaiser, Deputy Atlorney

General,
1
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2. Respondent Mayra Leticia Guerrero (Respondent) is representing herselt'in this

M~

proceeding and has chosen not Lo exercise her right w be represented by counsel,

3 Cnor aboul April 7, 20006, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License No. TCH 68342 1o Mayra Leticia Guerrero (Respondent), The Phanmacy Technician
License was in [ull force and effect at all times relevant 1o the charges brought in Accusation No.
3376 and will expire on April 30. 2012, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

i

to Accusation No. 3376 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy. and is currently
pending against Responderi. The Accusation and all other statutonily required documents werce
properly scrved on Respondent on April 12, 2010, Respondent timely filed her Notice of Defense
contesting the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No. 3376 1s attached as Fxhibit A and
incorporated herein by reference. |

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

5. Respondent has carcfully read, and undersiands the charges and alicgations in
Accusaiion No. 3376, Rcspondcm has also carefully read, and understands the effects ot this
Stipulated Scttlement and Disciplinary Order.

6. Respondent is fully aware of her léga] rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at
her own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against her: the right o
present evidence and to testify on her own behalfl the right to the issuance of subpocenas 1o
compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documenis: the right o reconsideration
and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly. and mtelhgently waives and gives up cach and
every right set forth above.

1
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CULPABILITY

8. Respondent admits the truth of each and cvery charge and allegation in Accusation

e
3

No. 3370,

9. Respondent agrees that her Pharmacy Technician License is subject 10 digeipline and
she agrees o be bound by the Board™s imposition ol discipline as set forth in the Disciplinary
Order below,

CONTINGERCY

10, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondent understands
and agrees that counsel {or Complainant and the stafl of the Board may communicate directly
with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice o or participation by
Respondent. By signing the stipulalion, Respondent understands and agrees that she may not
withdraw her agreement or seck o rescind the siipu]m‘icm prior to the time the Board considers
and acts upon it If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the
Stipulated Seitlement and Disciplinary Order shall be ol no force or c{’i;cci, excepl for this
paragraph, it shall be inadimissible in any legal action between the parties, and Lhc' Board shall not
be disqualified Irom further action by having considered this matier.

OTHER

1T, The parties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement
and Disciplinary Order, including facsimilc signatures thercto. shall have the same foree and
effect ag the originals.

12, This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the partics to be an
integrated writing representing the compleie, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporancous agreements, uﬁc‘]crs{andings, discussions,
negotigtions, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a

wriling exceuled by an authorized representative of cach ol the parties.

L




130 Inconsideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations. the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order:

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

FUIS HEREBY ORDERLED that Pharmacy Technician License No, TCH 68342 issued o
Respondent Mayra Leticia Guerrero (Respondent) is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed
and Respondent 1s placed on probation for five (5) years on the following terms and conditions.

1. Certification Prior to Resuming Work

Respondent shali be automatically suspended from working as @ pharmacy weehpician uniil
he or she s certilied as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4202(a)(4) and
provides satisiuctory prool of certification to the Board. Respondent shall not resume working as _
a ';.)huz*r;‘,acy technician until notified by the Board, Failure to achicve certification within one {hn
year shall be considered a violation of probation. Respondent shall not resume working as a
pharmacy technician unti] notified hy the Board. ‘

During suspenstion, respondent shall not enter any pharnmacy ares or any portion of any
other Board licensed premises (wholesaler. veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other
distributor of drugs) any drug manufacturer, or any other location where dangerous drugs and
devices or vonirolled substances are maintained. Respondent shall not do any act involving drug
selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding or dispensing: nor shall respondent
manage, a<i1n§niéicl'. or assist any licensce of the Bourd. Rcspbrxdcni shail not have aecess (o or
control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs and devices or controlled
substances. Respondent shall not resume work until notified by the Board.

Subject to the above restrictions, respondent may continge to own or hold an interest in any
heensed premises by the Board in which he or she holds an interest at the time this decision
becomes effective unless otherwise specified in this order.

Failure 10 comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation.

¢
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2. Obey All Laws
_ Respondent shall obey all state and federal Jaws and regulations.
Respondent shail report any of the following occurrences to the Board, in writing. within
seventy- two {72) hours of such occurrence:
an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Phormacy Law, state and federal food and drug lnws, or state and {ederal controlled substances
jaws
a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal eriminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint. information or indiciment
a conviction of any crime
P discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agencey
which mvolves Respondent’s pharmacy technician hicense or which i relaied to the practice of
pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing, or charging for any
drug. device or controtled substance.
Failure o tm.lc]y report any such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.
3. Report to the Board

s

Respondent shall report 1o the Board quarterly, on a schedule as direcied by the Board or
designee. The report shall be made cither in person or in writing, as directed. Among other
reguitemnents. Respondent shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there has
been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure 1o submit timely reports
in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period(s) of delinguency
in submission o’l'.rcg'x.)ris as directed may be added 1o the total period of probation. Morcover, i
the final probation report is not made as directed. probation :s‘ha]l be automaticall y extended unbi)
such time as the final report s made and aceepted by the Board,

4. Interview with the Board

Lipon reeeipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent shall appear in person for interviews
with the Board or its.designec, at sﬁch intervals and Jocations as are determined by the Board or

its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview withowt prior notification o Bourd

STIPULATED SETTEEMENT {Case No. 3
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staft, or failure to appear at two (25 or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its designee
during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation.

5. Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondent shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the Board's
monitoning and investigation of Respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of ey
probation. Fatlure 10 cooperate shall be considered a violaton ol probation,

6. Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, Respondent shall notify all present and progpective
employers of the decision in case number 3376 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed
on Respondent by the decision. as Tollows:

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen (13) days of
Respondent undertaking any new employment, Respondent shall cause her direct supervisor.
pharmacisi-in-charge {including each new pharmacist-in-charge employed during Respondent's
tenure of employment) and owner to report 1o the Board in writing acknowledging that the listed
individuai(s) has/have read {Im decision in case number 3376 and the {erms and uundiiinns
imposed thereby. 1t shall be Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that her employer(s) and/or
supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgement(s) 1o the Board.

If Respondent works for-or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment service.
Respondent must notify her direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge and owner ul every pharmacy
of the terms und condiiions of the decision in case number 3370 in advance of the Regpondent
commencing work at cach pharmacy. A record 0[' this notification must be provided to the Board
upon request

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the cffective ¢ dale of ihis decision, and within fifteen

13) days of Respondent undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy
employment service, Respondent shall cause her direct supervisor with the pharmacy
employment service 1o report to the Board in writing acknowledging that he or she has read the

decision in case number 3376 and the tens and conditions imposed thereby. 1t shall be

6
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1 1| Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit tmely

2 || acknowledgment(s) to the Board.
3 Failure to imely notify present or prospective emplover(s) or to cause that/those

4 |1 emplover(s) to submit timely acknowledgements 1o the Board shall be considered a violation of
3 | probation,

6 “Employment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time, part-time,
7 || temporary or rehel service or pharmacy management écrvicc as a pharmacy technician or in any
§ 1l position for which a pharmacy technician license 15 a requirement or criterion for employment.

o | whether the Respondent is considered an employee, independent contractor or volunicer.

14, 7. Reimbursement of Board Costs
11 As a condition precedent 1o successiul completion of probation. Respondent shall pay to the
12 || Board its costs of investigation and prosecution m the amount of $2,693.25. Respondent shall

13 || make said payments in accordance with the payment plan determined by the Board. There shall
14 || be no deviation from the schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee.

15 || Failure to pay costs by the deadline(s) as direcied shall be considered a violation of pmrobation.
16 The filing of bankruptey by Respondent shali not relieve Respondent of her responsibiiity

17 1| o reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution.

18 8. Probation Monitoring Costs
1y Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation momtoring as determined by the

20 It Board cach and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the Board on o schedule as
21 |t directed by the Board orits designee. Farlure to pay such costs by the deadlhine(s) as dirccted shall

22 || be considered a violation of probation.

23 9. Status of License
24 Respondent shall. at all times while on probation. maintain an active, current pharmacy

25 || technician license with the Board, including any perod during which suspension or probation is
26 || tolled, Failure to maintein an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation.
27 I Respondent's pharmacy technician lieense expires or is cancelled by operation of law or
28 || otherwisc at any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof duc o

.
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lling or otherwise. upon renewal or reapplication Respondent's license shall be .\'Iu't')jccz t0 all
terms and conditions of thig ';)roﬁation not previously satisfied.

10, License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent cease work duc 1o
retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of probation.
Respondent may tender her pharmacy technician license to the Board ib'r surrender. The Bourd or
its designec shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other
action 1t deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the
license, Respondent will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of prc)bzuionj This
surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shall become a part of the Respondent’s license
history with the Board.

Lipon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relinguish her phanmuacy technician
ficense w the Board within ten (10) days ol notification by the Board that the surrender is
accepted. Respondent may not reapply for any Bicense, permit, or registration from the Board for
three (3) years from the effective date of the surrender. Respondent shall meet all requirements
applicable o the license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted 10 the
Bouard.

11, Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment

Respondent shall notity the Board in writing within ten (10) days of any change of
cployment.

Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new employer, the
name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if known, Respondent shall further
1‘1(.)'2.%1‘;\/ the Bourd in writing within ten (10) days of a change in name. residence address and
mailing address. or phone number.

Fatlure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s). name(s), address(es). or

phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

STIPUL CTLEMENT {Case No, 3376)
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12, Tolling of Probation
Except during periods of suspension, Respondent shall, at all imes while on probation, be

employed as a pharmacy technician in California for a minimurm of 20 hours per calendar month.
Any month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of probation. i.e., the
period of probation shall be extended by one month for cach month during which this minimum is
not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondent must non.mhu]css comply
with all tlerms and conditions of probation.

Should Respondent. regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease
working as a pharmacy technician for a minimum of 20 hours per calendar month in California,

Regpondent must notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of cessation of work and must

further notity the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the resumption of the work, Any Jatlure

to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

1118 & violation of probation for Respondent's probation to remain tolied pursuant to the
provisions of this condition for a total period, counting conseculive and non-consecutive months,
exceeding thirty-six (36) months.

"Cessation of work” means calendar month during whiéh Respondent is not working for at
least 20 hours as a pharmacy technician, as defined in. Business and Professions Code seetion
4113, “Resumption ol work™ means any calendar month during which Respondent is working as
a pharmacy technician for at least 20 hours as 1 pharmacy technician as defined by Business and
Professions Code section 4115

13, Violaiion of Probation

1f"a Respondent has not u)mphcd with any term or condition of probation, the Board shall
have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent, and probation shall automalically be extended,
until all terms and conditions have bccn satishied or the Board has taken other action as deemed
appropriate to treat the failure {o comply as a violation of probation, to terminate probation, and
to impose the penalty that was stayed.

I Respondent violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent notice

and an opportunity lo be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that

TIPULATIED S] b I
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was staycd, Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating that 2
violation thereof may lead (o automatic termination of the stay-and/or revocation of the license.

if a petition Lo revoke probation or an accusation is filed aguinst Respondent during
probation. the Bourd shall have continuing jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall be
automatically extended untif the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.

t4.  Completion of Probation

Lipon written notice by the Board indicating successful completion of probation.
Respondent's pharmacy Lechnician license will be fully restored.

15, No Ownership of Licensed Premises

Respondent shall not own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as @ manager,
administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate. or partner of any business, firm.
partnership, or uanx'})chexiiL>11 currently or hereinafter lcensed by the Board. Respondent shall sell or
transfer any }egal or beneficial interest in any entity licensed by the Board within minety (907 days
following the effective date of this decision and shall immediately thereafler provide witten
proof thereol o the Board. Failure w timely divest any legal or beneficial interest(s) or provide
docurnentation thereo! shall be congidered a violation of probation.

6. Attend Substance Abuse Recovery Relapse Prevention and Support Groups

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall begin regular
attendance at a recognized and established substance abuse recovery support group in Califorma,
{c.g., Alcoholics f’\m)n'ymcms, Narcotics Anonymous. ete.) which has been approved by the Board
or its designee, Respondent must attend at least one group meeting per week unjess otherwise
directed by the Board or its designee. Respondent shall continue regular atendance and submit
signed and dated documentation confirming attendance with cach quarterly report for the duration
of probation. Failure 1o attend or submit documentation thereof shall be considered a violation of
probation.

17.  Random Drug Screening

Respondent, at her own expense, shall participate in random testing, including but not

limited to biological fluid testing (urine. blood). breathalyzer, hair follicle testing. or ather drug,

T {Case No, 3376}
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screening program as directed by the Board or its designee. Respondent mav be required to
participate in testing for the entire probation period and the frequency of testing will be
determined by the Board or its designee. At all times Respondent shall fully cooperate with the
Board or its designee, and shall, when directed, submit to such tests and samples for the detection
ol aleohol, narcotics, hypnotics, dangerous drugs or other controlled substances.as the Board or
iis designee may direct. Failure to timely submit to testing as directed shall be considered a
violation of probation. Upon request of the Board or its designee, Respondent shall provide
documentation from a licensed practitioner that the preseription for a detected drug was
legitimately issued and is a necessary part of the treatment of the Respondent. Failure to timely
provide such documentation shall be considered a violation of probaiion. Any confirmed positive
test for aleoho! or for any drug not lawiully prescribed by a licensed practivioner as part of a
documented medical treatment shall be considered a violation of probation and shall resuitin the
autematic suspension of work by Respondent. Respondent may not resume work as a pharmacy
technician until mn..iﬂcéi by the Board in writing,

During suspension, Respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion ol or any
other Board licensed premises (wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other
distributor of drugs) any drug manufacturer, or any other location where dangerous drugs and
devices or controlled substances arc maintained. Respondent shall not do any act involving drug
sclection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding or dispensing: nor shall Respondent
manage. adminisier, or assist any licensee of the Board. Respondent shall not have access Lo or
control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs and devices or controlied
subsiances. Respondent shall not resume work until notified by the Bourd.

Respondeni shall not direct, control or perform any aspect of the practive of pharmucy.
Subject to the above restrictions, Respondent may continue 10 own or liold an interestin any

licensed premises in which he or she holds an interest at the time this decision becomes elfcetive

unless otherwise speciiled in this order.

Failure 1o comply with this suspension shall be considered a violaton of probation.
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18, Work Site Monitor

Within ten (10) days of the e‘ff‘c‘uti\-'t; date of this decision, Respondent shall idemtify a work
site monitor, for prior approval by the Board, who shall be responsibic for supervising .
Respondent during working hours. Respondent shall be responsible for ensuring that the work site
monitor reports in writing 10 the Board quarterly. Should the desi gng.ucd work site monilor
determine at any time during the probationary period that Respondent has not maintained
sobriety, he or she shall notify the Board immediately, cither orally or in writing as directed.
Shouid Respondent change employment, & new work site monitor must be designaiced, lor prior

approval by the Board, within ten (10) days of commencing new employment, Failure 1o identify

-an aceeplable initial or replacement work site monitor, or to ensure quarterly reports are

submitied (o the Board, shall be considered a violation of probation.

19.  Notification of Departure

Prior to leaving the probationary geographic area designated by the Board or its designee
for a period greater than twenty-four (24) hours, Respondent shall notify the Bourd verball y and
in writing of the dates of departurc and return, Failure to comply with this provision shall be
considered a violation of probation.

20, Abstain from Drugs and Aleohol Use

Respondent shall completely abstain from the possession or use of alcohol, controlled
subsiances. dangerous drugs and their associated paraphernalia except when the drugs arc
lawfully p.ruscr'ibod by a licensed practitioner as part of a documented medical treatment. Upon
reguest of the Board or s designee, Respondent shall provide documentation from the licensed
practitioner that the prescription for the drug was legitimately issued and is a necessary part of the
treatment of the Respondent. Failure to timely provide such documentation shall be considered a
violation of probation. Respondent shall ensure that he or she is not in the same physical localion
as individuals who are using illicit substances even il Respondent is not personally ingesting the
drugs. Any possession or use of aleohol, controlled substances, or their associated paraphemalia
not supported by the documentation timely provided. and/or any physical proxymity o persons

using illicit substances, shall be considered a violation of prohation.
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ACCEPTANCE

Fhave carefully read the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. | understand the
stipulation and the cffect it will have on my Pharmacy Technician License. | enter into this

Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily. knowingly, and inteltigently. und agre
I

B - 3 . g It . w : i
1o he bound by the Decision and Order ofthe 30 n(/i}n» ,cu‘maw

1

090 [ WA
MAYRA LI :'rnul/\ cJL R RLI (ol
R.@Sp(mdi@m }

i ¢
\» F
i

.

DATED:

T
P

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitied for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.

/ /
. Ad /;’ [ m / i g _ . . ,
Dated: | L1 U Respecttully Submitied,

SDMUND G BROWN JR.
Attomey G encral of Califorma
GREGORY JL SALUTE
Supervising Depuly Attorney General
P W

y1 Kids
NANCY AL KAISER
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for (mf/)/m/mm

[LA2009603231
60542294 doc
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR.

Attorney General of California

GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NANCY A. KAISER

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 192083
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-5794
Facsimile: (213)897-2804

\| Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 3376
MAYRA LETICIA GUERRERO
4345 E. 5th Street
Los Angeles, CA 90022 ACCUSATION

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH 68342

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
| PARTIES

1. "Virginia K. Herold (Complainant) bril;gs this Accusation solely in her official
capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.

2. Onorabout April 7, 2006, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License Number TCH 68342 to Mayra Leticia Guerre.ro (Respondént). The Pharmacy Technician
License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will
expire on April 30, 2010, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy, under the authority of the
following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise

indicated.

Accusation (Guerrero)




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20-

21
22
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27
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4. Section 4300 of the Code permits the Board to take disciplinary action to suspend or
revoke a license issued by the Board.

5. Section 4301 of the Code states:

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake,

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

"(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United
States .regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

"(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the use,
consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any
combination of those substances.

"(I) The conviction of a crime substantially refated to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13
(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled
substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or
dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the
record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred.
The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order
to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances
or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the
qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or
a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning
of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made
suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of

the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not

™~
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guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or
indictment.”

6.  Section 492 of the Code states, in part:

"Notwithstanding any other provision of law, successful completion of any diversion

program under the Penal Code, or successful completion of an alcoho! and drug problem

| assessment program under Article 5 (commencing with section 23249.50) of Chapter 12 of

Division 11 of the Vehicle Code, shall not prohibit any agency established under Division 2
([Healing Arts] commencing with Section 500) of this code, or any initiative act referred.to in that
division, from taking disciplinary action against a licensee or from denying a license for
professional misconduct, notwithstanding that evidence of that misconduct may be recorded in a
record pertaining to an arrest.”

7. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the suspension/expiration/
surrender/cancellation of a license shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a
disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued
or reinstated.

8. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a

crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a

“licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a

licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare."

STATE DRUG STATUTES

9.  Health and Safety Code section 11007 states that “controlled substance” unless

- otherwise specified, means a drug, substance, or immediate precursor which is listed in any

schedule in Section 11054, 11055, 11056, 11057, or 11058.
1/
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10. Health and Safety Code section 11364, subdivision (a), states, in part, that:

“(a) It is unlawful to possess an opium pipe or any device, contrivance, instrument, or
paraphernalia used for unlawfully injecting or smoking (1) a controlled substance specified in
subdivision (b), (c), or (e), or paragraph (1) of subdivision (f) of Section 11054, specified in
paragraph (14), (15), or (20) of subdivision (d) of Section 11054, specified in subdivision (b) or
(c) of Section 11055, or specified in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 11055, or (2) a -
controlled substance which is a narcotic drug classified in Schedule III, IV, or V.”

11.  Health and Safety Code section 11377, subdivision (a), states, in part, that:

“Except as authorized by law and as otherwise provided in subdivision (b) or Section
11375, or in Article 7 (commencing with Section 4211) of Chapter 9 of Division 2 of the
Business and Professions Code, every person who possesses any controlled substance which is . .

. (5) specified in subdivision (d), (€), or (f) of Section 11055, unless upon the prescription of a

physician, dentist, podiatrist, or veterinarian, licensed to practice in this state, shall be punished

by imprisonment in a county jail for a period of not more than one year or in the state prison.”

COST RECOVERY

12.  Section 125.3 of the Code provides that the Board may request the administrative law
judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of the licensing act to
pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the case.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Conviction of Substantially Related Crimes)

13.  Respondent has subjected her license to disciplinary action under sections 4301,
subdivisions (k) and (1) of the Code, in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 1770, on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Respondent was convicted of -
crimes, which are substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a pharmacy
technician, as follows:

a. On or about December 31, 2007, in a criminal proceeding entitled People_ of the State

of California v. Mayra Leticia Guerrero, in Los Angeles County Superior Court, Case No.

-6EA11926, Respondent pled nolo contendere and was convicted of violating Health and Safety

4
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Code section "1-]364,'subdivision (a) (possession of controlled substance paraphernalia), a
misdemeanor. Respondent was placed on three years probation, sentenced to two days jail and
fined. The circumstances are as follows:

b.  Onor about October 25, 2006, Respondent was observed by Los Angeles County
Deputy Sheriffs sitting in a parked Ford Explorer that was blocking a fire hydrant. When
contacted, the deputies asked Respondent if they could search her purse. She replied, “Sure, sir,
go ahead, I think I have Meth.” The deputies recovered a five inch glass pipe which was burnt at
one end from Respondent’s purse, which is used to smoke Methamphetamine. Respondent told
the deputies “That’s mine, sir,  started using Meth again.” Respondent was arrested for the
possession of controlled substance paraphernalia in violation of Health and Safety Code section
11364, subdivision (a).

c.  Onorabout December 19, 2006, in a criminal proceeding entitled People of the State
of California v. Mayra Leticia Guerrero, in Los Angeles County Superior Court, Case No.
6RI107806, Respondent pleci guilty to violating Health and Safety Code section 11377,
subdivision (a), (possession of a controlled substance, Methamphetamine), a misdemeanor.
Respondent was placed on deferred entry of judgment for 36 months and fined. On or about June
5, 2009, the deferred entry of judgment was terminated and Respondent was convicted of the
charge. The circumstances are as follows:

d.  Onorabout December 15, 2006, Los An.geles County Deputy Sheriffs contacted
Respondent in an under the influence/possession of narcotics investigation. Respondent told the
deputies that she did not have any narcotics on her person, but that there was a “loéded” narcotics
pipe inside of the hotel room registered.to her and that the pipe was hers. The deputies also
discovered two clear plastic bindles containing Methamphetamine, which Respondent admitted
were hers. Respondent was arrested for possession of a controlled substance, Methamphetamine,
in violation of Health and Safety Code sections 11377, and possession of controlled substance
paraphernalia, in violation ofH_ea]th and Safety section 11364, subdivision (a).

1
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of State Laws Regulating Controlled Substances)
14.  Respondent has subjected her license to disciplinary action under section 4301,
subdivision (j), on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that on or about December 15, 2006,

Respondent violated Health and Safety Code section 11377, subdivision (a), by illegélly

Jpossessing a controlled substance and dangerous drug, Methamphetamine, and Health and Safety

section 11364, subdivision (a), by illegally possessing narcotic paraphernalia, as set forth in
paragraph 13, above.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician License Number TCH 68342, issued
to Mayra Leticia Guerrero Mayra Leticia Guerrero;

2. Ordering Mayra Leticia Guerrero to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs
of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code

section 125.3; and,

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.
DATED:.Afké;/ééj (:é§£Zifi;Z;z§7

K HEROLD !

Board o Phal macy
State of California
Complainant

LA2009603231
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